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                                              33 E. Broadway Ave.
Meridian, ID  83642

208.863.4160

www.meridiandevelopmentcorp.com

MINUTES                                           
 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Wednesday, June 22, 2011, 4:00 p.m.

Meridian City Hall Conference Room

33 East Broadway Avenue - Meridian, Idaho
1. Call Meeting to Order (Slocum):
Meeting called to order at 4:02 p.m.
2. Roll-call Attendance (Slocum):
     O
Julie Pipal – Chairman 
     X
 Keith Bird – Member 

     X 
Craig Slocum – Vice-Chairman
___X__ Jim Escobar – Member 
     X
Eric Jensen – Secretary/Treasurer
     O
 Larry Lipschultz – Member 



__O___ Tammy de Weerd – Member 


___X___ Dan Basalone – Member



___O___ Jennifer Pike

     X
 Joe Borton – Counsel


     X
 Ashley Ford – Project Manager
 

3. Confirm Agenda (Slocum):
Bird:  I move we confirm the agenda as published.
Basalone:  Second.

Slocum:  Any discussion?  Hearing none, all those in favor say aye.  Opposed.
4.
Consent Agenda (Slocum):

a. Approve Minutes of June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting:
Bird:  I move we approve the consent agenda as published and for the vice-chair to sign and the secretary to attest.

Jensen:  Second.

Slocum: Any discussion?  Hearing none –

Borton:  You should always roll call your consent.

Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Basalone; --

Slocum: Do I need to abstain if I wasn’t here?

Borton:  You can if that is what you want to do.

Slocum:  I am still an aye.  I read them.

Continue Roll Call Vote:  Slocum, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
5.      Boise Valley Economic Partnership Discussion (BVEP):

Ford:  We asked Clark Krause to be here today – we just a did a walking tour as you all received the invitation for and some were able to be a part of it this afternoon to introduce Clark to downtown Meridian and to talk about a little bit about what MDC’s mission is – Commissioner Pipal and I sat down with Clark probably about three or four weeks ago and just made introductions to ourselves and just wanted to make sure that they new we existed and if there is things that we can work together on and assist them with we were certainly wanting to extend them that offer.  We asked Clark to come do a walking tour and just make an introduction to the Board and just start a dialogue and one of the things we talked about are as we, MDC, can do to assist feedback in promoting downtown Meridian as well and so I thought I would let him talk a little bit about what their needs are and what we can do for them.  Thank you for being here.

Krause:  -- and this is Lisa Lindquist she works with me in the office and does all of our marketing and we are right in the middle of restructuring our marketing and some things like that too.  But, Councilman Bird it is nice to see you again.  I was asking him for money recently.  So what we really are is kind of a sales marketing for economic development for across the region – the region being from Mountain Home to Caldwell.  So all were endorsed by each of the communities to be a support or an addition to economic development agencies’ work that is already being done within the cities and the counties.  So we work with Brenda Sherwood in Meridian to make sure that we bring opportunities to this area as well as the council and the mayor and other people, business.  Danice Johnson is a big part of our world and a big supporter and obviously a local community member that we have great respect for that has really helped us kind of kick start.  We are right in the middle of our campaign drive – I am not here to ask you for money today, Councilman, but I will tell you that we spent the last few months getting ourselves recalculated for the next five years – we are a group that is funded on about $4 million for the next five years. So that is not $4 million a year, but about $800,000 a year or $750,000 or somewhere in there and that really gives us the opportunity to go out and do marketing and sales for the area.  So when I say that what we go out and do is we try and bring economic based jobs to the Valley so for instance next week, Chicago, we have had four sales missions this year.  We have been to northern California, southern California – Chicago.  We have been to Portland, have been to several other places within the last six months.  We have had a win that just recently happened. The name of the company was In Phase which brought 60 jobs to the Valley – looked at Meridian, frankly thought they were coming to Meridian, but once the rents hit and they figured out where they were with things they ended up by the Boise Airport.  But you did inherit the guys running that place.  So he assumed that he would be out here and this was an area that we certainly showed him and of course anyone from the Valley is for jobs for citizens across the Valley, so it is great.  We work with Mayors and Councils and County Commissioners that realize that a win for Caldwell is still is a win for the Valley and a win down Mountain Home is that – a win in Meridian is great.  So we work for each community across and we had a meeting this morning where we were touring Caldwell and Brenda was with us and all the other communities and kind of a collaborative effort.  Obviously the bigger product we have to sell when we are in Chicago or L.A. a lot of people see this whole Valley as rural.  So we have to look as big and as good as we can when we are out there and so we sell the whole workforce shed – we sell every infrastructure, ever college, everything that we can when we are out on the road and we go out and see about 100 companies a year and we will have about – I promise you we will have six sales missions but we have had already about five this year since January.  We will probably have 9 to 10 this year when it is all said and done – it will come down to these metros.  The reason that we do that and try to get face to face with companies is obviously we are trying to build a relationship. I call it relationship marketing, but we don’t get in front of those companies in Chicago because we have got some kind of ad in a magazine out there.  It really is a relationship that starts today and maybe two years, three years down the road they might say we are moving somewhere and those guys and ladies from Boise keep bugging us – the Treasure Valley and maybe we should go check it out and see what is there.  I did the same king of work in New Mexico.  I was running the state organization for New Mexico and did the same thing. I saw over 1,000 companies when I was there over the last five years and it is not a 100 yard spring, it takes a marathon run.  So it really takes working today to get a deal three years from now.  The is no way around it.  There is no mad science to this thing.  That is really what it takes. So we are that group that gives yourselves a marketing arm for the whole Valley and with that being said we talked about product and we worked with urban renewal in Nampa, urban renewal in Caldwell, urban renewal in Boise and we want to work with urban renewal in Meridian because it is one of the only tools that we have really in the State of Idaho in this Valley to go out and get a deal done.  So we are just really out here today – Ashley invited us out really to kind of see what the product looks like, what pieces you own and start thinking creatively about is it us bringing an economic base deal to this section – land section and in seeing what kind of deal we can put together here or is it just saying hey it is nice, hello – so we are really here just as an exploration and that is the main thing and to understand what you have and where it is at and thank you so much for your time and if you guys have any questions I am more than happy to answer.

Bird:  Clark explain to them that it is not municipalities that fund this you also are out in the private as well – that you are also out with the private developers that are funding this too.

Krause:  Yes.  Absolutely, thank you.  If you want to know how our funding works – this formulating dollars – 20 percent off it is public sector and 80 percent is private sector.  Some of the public have probably gotten a call from us. We have been asking around a lot for the last six months.  But it is 80/20, our goal is 75/25, but I think we are going to come in at about 80/20 and Ada County came in Canyon County came in and the cities came in and we really appreciate your support and the next thing that we have got to go out and do is get some wins here.  We have another win that we think is around the corner.  Unfortunately they had one of their facilities taken out by a tornado this summer and so it has really put them back on their heals.  We would have had an announcement but obviously they have got some hardship there that they are trying to take care of before they move to the second expansion – they will announce this year.  What we are seeing?  Typically about 100, 50, 150 job units showing up and they are regional offices so they are looking for – they are typically shared services right now – we have had some big manufacturing, but most of it has been in the 100 to 150 people shared services looking to take 50 different accountants across the country and put them in a place where they only have to have 25.  Taking their accountants receivables across the country and getting them down to 20.  So it is a lot of consolidation, cost savings type modeling that is going on right now across the country.  I think they have waited and waited and they are bulging at the seams and it is time to make some decisions. With that being said they seem to be moving at a pretty quick pace and that is different than what has been happening for the last four years.  I mean this has been a nasty, slow and I call it constipated, but I am 50 so I use words like that, but it has been really brutal.  But lately you can tell there are real deals.  You can tell people are going to make decisions.  We have had four site visits in the last two weeks.  That is phenomenal.  When I was running the state organization, if I had four in a month I was busy.  So to have four here is fantastic.  So something is happening out there.  
Slocum:  Clark I know and I would assume and Ashley has probably shared with you, I know Chairman Pipal has started to pull together some information that the Development Corporation can provide of what we have, what we provide as a tool and I think the executive committee is kind of reviewing that and we should have that to you soon.  The other question I have is in your short walk around – any initial thoughts on Meridian of what you saw or what you heard?  

Krause: The first 100 days I was here I lived in Meridian, so I would come to this area quite in a bit when I was living in this area.  One of the things – obviously you see great potential within the section of lands that you have.  I will be frank, it is shocking that that one building is still standing and somebody hasn’t tractor it – it is scary.  I think that will actually hold you up.  No matter what – the buildings around it are so attractive – you have kind of that cool building that is across the street and if somebody is looking to do maybe a coffee shop, but if I were there with a five year old and my kid ran across to that building would be kind of frightening.  Then there is all kinds of great buildings out there and it looks like it would be some wonderful applications and maybe go, number one, talk to Flying M Coffee Shop and some of the other really nice organically grown businesses that are here in the Valley and kind of get the best of the best.  The blocks are cool enough that I think people would really seriously consider that and then there is some clean up that seems in need to take place.  That is my first impression and you know, even Red Sky who Ashley works for – like wouldn’t it be cool to be in there.  I would love to fix one of those buildings up and be in there.  I think it would be awesome.  
Bird:  The old bank building – that would be for sell.  If you don’t fall on your head first.

Krause:  One of the things that Daniel said is obviously – one thing that you have to – I did economic development in Cedar City.  We had a beautiful downtown, but the tenant issues are really hard to deal with because you have got to clear them – if you can’t bring Flying M in and say isn’t this a beautiful building and then they say well go talk to grandma Jones if you can find her and she is pretty mean when you get on the phone with her, you know it has to be fairly cleaned up and you have some owner things (inaudible) and you have those things that have to be cleaned up for the dream to create here and maybe that is buying some more buildings – I don’t know.  

Slocum: Any other questions or discussions?

Krause:  Our challenge to you today is tell us what a win looks like and that would be – I am not asking you to answer that today, but what is a win for you?  And can we help you with that win?  Tell us what you are willing to do to create that deal so that when we are out in Chicago talking to somebody and they might need a cool office and it is all described here, then at least we can give them an example of what you might be willing to do.  The closer you can get to that the more successful we will be in bringing you a client.  

Basalone:  Clark just kind of bouncing off of what you just said, it seems like your focus in terms of your travels is mainly the larger nation wide regions looking for offices or putting a part of their businesses up here.  But what about – most downtowns are small business enterprise zones.  What about getting the small entrepreneurs you know the less than 15 personnel kinds of functional activity in the downtown?  Have you been involved in that?
Krause:  Yeah we had, for instance, a client that came to us three weeks ago and it is great down there – they do financial modeling.  They are going to be selling an indicated model for Wall Street that you as a consumer can go in there and have a $100 membership or a $100,000 membership; I guess some predictability to the kind of the non Enron predictability model variety.  It is going to tell you what is really behind the balance sheets corporations and which ones are going to be here in ten years and which ones are really looking – after the spin is done – they needed a small building, there is three of them.  They wanted to be in a creative spot, creative place. They are really used to mixed use downtowns and they are looking for a special place and they want to go for about 30 people.  To me that is the kind of – we don’t necessarily chasing them, but when the phone rings we see a lot of those, does that make sense?

Basalone:  Yes.

Slocum:  Thank you and we appreciate your time.  We will be getting back to you.  For the record, happy birthday to our project manager today.  

6.      ULI Technical Assistance Grant Discussion with ULI Idaho Chair (Ford):
Ford:  We had Bob Taunton and Ed Miller here today. Bob is the outgoing chairman of the ULI Idaho District and Ed is the incoming chairman.  As you may remember we submitted an application for a technical assistance grant in January of this year and I have included that in your packets. They came back to us and said they aren’t sure how they can help you and would you consider another area?  And so we focused on the one block (inaudible) and that information is included in your packets as well.  They have been incredibly busy with the Nampa technical assistance grant with their downtown and I included a copy of that report and so you can kind of see what the finished product that they produced for those grants.  So we thought this was an opportunity because I think they are still interested in trying to assist Meridian with some of our goals and implementing destination downtown and trying to get down to a lower level than what we are with the current document and I thought that this was a good opportunity to have a discussion between both entities and see what we can come up with. So Ed, Bob thank you for being here.
Taunton:  Thanks Ashley and for the opportunity for being here.  Nice to see you again.  As Ashley has given a pretty good overview of our engagement to this point.  There is one study that we did undertake last year was a sustainable downtown study the Re-development Agency did partake in and we thought it had a great deal of value for the various cities – there were six cities in the valley that did help fund that.  Then we offered the opportunity to specific cities to work on some projects that we last fall had a public private partnership program here in Meridian (inaudible) of ULI and put on a program and out of that came another solicitation if you would like for projects to work on.  Obviously we are a volunteer organization and Ed and I have day jobs as do all of the others.  So we were not really able to take on the Nampa project and Meridian project at the same time.  So we have completed the Nampa project and are waiting for comments back on the development agency and there will probably be a little further discussion and maybe we can help them in identifying what their next steps will be as we all know the market is quite different than what it was in 2005 and a lot of the plans that were done at that point really are not realistic today given the new realities that we have and demographics and also financial (inaudible).  We are still interested in speaking with you in finding out more about what you are really looking to do within the downtown area.  We had a couple different ideas as Ashley pointed out there was the four block area and we couldn’t quite identify what we could do to help you and there was the version of the one block – so we just decided that it would probably make sense to have a further conversation and see if there has been more of a thought process as to exactly how ULI could help.  So, Ed?
Miller:  I think that is a good summary.  We are here to just hear some of your ideas and thoughts and as Bob said to figure out how we might be able to help.  We did just finish our Nampa project and are hoping – we feel that that has been a pretty useful product for them and helping them clear up some of their thinking and giving them some direction by a pretty good group of people and objective of non interested stakeholders and we think we did add value to Nampa and as Bob said we are going to have some follow up with them again subject to our volunteer nature and timing and that sort of thing and we would like to be able to help you too if we can figure out a project where we can really be helpful and do something meaningful for the city.  I guess the one thing that I would say that in your whole – and it has been a while since I have gone back and read it, but your whole destination downtown planning effort that you have gone through is a pretty comprehensive effort and I guess for me I was struggling a little bit about how we could drill down a little better than that and I think to do that I would just like to hear some of your take on it so that maybe we could formulate something.  
Basalone:  First of all I was very impressed with what you presented to us in written form and what you are doing – because I was impressed with the fact that you believe in doing more about less – doing something definable that shows progress.  Our urban renewal, for instance, is what two square miles or something like that?  It is a big area, but I like what you were saying about concentrating on just the core blocks.  The two square blocks and then building from there because hopefully from there we can show progress and show that something is being done and you start from the inside out, rather than the outside in.  I was also impressed with the fact that you emphasized activities. What are the activities that you are planning on bringing?  Not just a retail sales, but what activities that actually bring people into the downtown area and that you have an annual calendar that has all of these activities in it.  That is my belief, I think that that is what we need to do and so I was very impressed with the summary of what you can do.  

Slocum:  I guess the bigger discussion is just to kind of drill down a specific project or scope that the Board is comfortable with and that ULI feels that they can offer some valid study and outcome of.  Which I guess when we originally came with the four block and I wasn’t a part of the ULI meeting where it was discussed and I know you have since been a walked, right?  If I am thinking about the timeline and maybe just share that with us and why the four block concept, there wasn’t enough meat to it or outcome specifically what?

Taunton:  We did receive the information from Ashley about the four block area.  Ed and I came out and met with some of the group and Anna Canning as well and walked around when we went back with the group to a meeting in Ed’s office, there was just not a clear idea of what you were asking us to do.  So it wasn’t so much that we wanted you to make the project smaller, it was more that we needed to have more definition about how we could help you and what are the specific things?  As Ed said you did a great job in your destination downtown program and in fact when we first had the meeting we expected that it would be very clear what your next steps would be and what you would want ULI to engage to do and when it was a little murky some of the group thought that before we commit to anything, we get this to clarify and are they looking for a process, an input on an existing plan?  Looking for what?  That is really what our position was.  Then you came back with the single block, but then we heard that the city had put the old city hall out as an RFP and (inaudible) didn’t include much (inaudible) with the development agency on that and that again said to us maybe we ought to just stand back and we have got the Nampa project started and when that is done let’s go back to the Board and see if we can understand what they wanted.  One of the things that certainly Ed has talked about is what is the perception of downtown relative to the other very successful retail locations that we have relative to Fairview and Eagle?  Someone suggested that maybe they should just move downtown over there and call it good?  So what are the uses that make sense in this area given the context that you are in and the limitations that exist already and what might happen at Ten Mile for example?  What really makes sense for the downtown area and the kinds of activities and uses that are going to bring people downtown and we can help you work on that certainly as far as identifying how you might arrive at some suitable activities, you know (inaudible) hockey are some ideas certainly and some cool ideas that attract certain types of businesses.  Initially it is the activity side we think.  What does the community want to do?  We can help you work on that and the process to figure that out or we could provide and give you some input just based on the broad spectrum backgrounds that we have – we have got everybody you could think of that is in ULI – finance, legal, design, development, consulting and a broad spectrum of backgrounds – I mean we have got everybody that you could think of from the ULI to finance, design, legal, development, consulting we have a broad spectrum of backgrounds that could put some energy into that.  But if we have something specific then we could focus on that.  That is really where we are at the moment and some direction from the Board.
Ford:  Well I think initially Mr. Chairman, kind of what spurred this was we have that bank block and (inaudible) city owned, the old city hall and the two bank buildings and we knew that the overall vision to purchase those was for being new development to take over the majority of that block.  We know that recently there has been a private developer that has come and looked at that area and it is my understanding that he has passed on it, but one of the things that we were struggling with was destination downtown was really great in terms of overall principles, goals and objectives and was a 30,000 foot level, but what we were trying to accomplish was down to a 5,000 or 10,000 foot levels and help us with the redevelopment so that when we do have people approach either the city or the development corporation we can say this is kind of what we are thinking in terms of mixed uses and what would make sense in this area.  So that is how this sort of evolved and then as we got to thinking about it more, we wanted to think you know what can we do to make it more (inaudible) block and that type of feel and kind of patio seating for restaurants and just have more of that true pedestrian feel and just walk into that block and just feel good and you don’t necessarily know why off the top of your head, but just know that this feels differently.  So try to have that sense of place as well.  Then I think in general the other big (inaudible) that we were struggling with as well when we initially put this application together as well was we have put forth a lot of efforts towards public involvement in the last few years and while there has been some, there hasn’t been a lot and then the folks that we have tried to engage and they have declined come back and say well they never listened to me in the first place.  So I think we were looking for some new ideas and maybe some suggestions on how to try and integrate the public more into this process.  We know a lot of the business owners have been here for many, many years and frankly they would rather not see anything changed and we have new business owners who are very energetic and would want to be involved and would love to see the downtown core evolve.  So to try and mesh all of that together was how we approached this initially.  So I don’t know if that could still be a part of it.  I think (inaudible), the activities, I think that is certainly something that we envision as being a part of that initially.  Correct me if I am wrong on that one.
Slocum:  I concur.

Basalone:  There is another part of this and that is the historical part.  You mentioned facetiously about we could move to Eagle and Fairview and call that downtown. You are absolutely right if you are just thinking retail.  But this is the history of this community.  I am an old history major, college history major.  I would hate to see this area – you know just talking to Keith about some of the people that have been active in this area, who have helped this area grow and to lose that for our children is a crime.  There is nothing historical that would draw people here.  We have some buildings on the historical registry.  If you go onto the Chamber of Commerce site, you can see the Heritage building, you can see the park bench that is almost falling down and you can see these things, but they are few and far between and there is nothing that can tie them into the cultural development of this area.  There is no children’s museum here, there is no adult museum, there is the small little display over there, but it should be something where every second and third grader in Meridian in their school career takes a trip downtown to learn about their community as part of their social studies and then that builds a vibrant reason for having a downtown.  It is adjusting because they come in (inaudible) once or twice a month.  So how do we build that historical perspective for this community so that this becomes the center of history as well as retail?  That to me is the big challenge.  

Taunton:  And potentially not just retail.

Basalone:  Yeah, any function.

Miller:  Is there a consensus in the community do you think or on your Board or the City Council as to what the downtown should be?  You have a (inaudible) community by the way.  This is a great little community and what Bob mentioned out on Eagle Road, I mean it is just amazing the amount of development that has gone on here.  But is there a consensus do you think about what the downtown should be?  I mean, a consensus on your Board, your community and how is downtown going to be distinguished from other places? What will be the energy here?  I guess I would say from the walk around that I have done here, I think you have got a fabulous opportunity and I think the opportunity is centered around the fact that you have got a very big public investment that you have done in the City Hall here.  I think that is great.  You have a lot of city and development corporation ownership of lands, so you have some assets that you can build from.  I guess if I were saying that maybe if something was missing is what is the community missing that you would want to see downtown?  What is going to be the draw?  Why am I going to want to come downtown Meridian?  Well, Epi’s Restaurant is one reason, but what is the other reasons that you are going to want to bring us to downtown and make it vibrant?

Bird:  Since I have been here the longest.  First off is the city built this building down here because we wanted to keep it down town.  Let’s face the facts, we could have paid a third of the cost if we had went over a mile.  But this is Meridian and we love the outside area and that is great, but we need a downtown.  No community is successful without a downtown.  My vision of our downtown is we are not going to have the 21 story US Bank buildings – you know that is all in Boise as the Capital is over there, the Airport is over there.  But what I see is Hyde Park, which I think is a neat little community only about five times bigger and some more stuff.  I think we will have residential.  Our biggest thing right now and this is me talking personally I want to see a civic center down here; there itself if you could get a civic center like Nampa has there is the draw down town.  Once you get something that draws down here then you get the little retailers in there.  You are not going to get the big box store.  You don’t want the big box store here.  You get the little.  Then you are going to have some apartment buildings, condos, stuff like that on the outskirts.  That is my envision of what Meridian would wind up.  We just got going good and the economy went south.  There was some plans on stuff being done that when the economy went, it just shut down.  That is my envision of downtown and I hope I get to see it come true.  Because I think once we get something downtown – this building right here showed that the city was not leaving downtown, this is our downtown.  This is the community of Meridian.
Slocum:  Well I think this Board’s commitment to VRT COMPASS building says the same.  

Bird:  Another thing my idea making sure we got down here was we bring in 30 or 40 jobs in here that is downtown that have to eat, that could shop.  What I envision and I don’t know if you are familiar with Nampa (inaudible) that I shopped at over there for 50 or 60 years, I envision little retail outlets like that – small office buildings.  I mean we are not – I mean your big law firms are not going to come to Meridian, Idaho.  I am not sure that we can accommodate it.

Taunton:  It is interesting though Keith – the big law firms won’t come, but we actually might have a branch at some point and time – I am a big law firm.  And it would be nice and one of the sad things that happened in Nampa is they lost a lot of their professional offices that could have been downtown just because they couldn’t keep it downtown. It would have been nice if they could have.

Bird:  They had kind of a bigger scale – they lost of a little bit of downtown because two or three people owned 90 percent of downtown and they did not want new development coming in – the same as we have – we have got a person that owns property down here that doesn’t want to sell it for any reason.  But I think if we get a path and stay to it and hopefully this economy will start going north again before too long, in my lifetime I hope – maybe we can have – I can envision three and four story buildings down here maybe with some offices and stuff. There is nothing wrong with having an insurance office down here like that, but we don’t want the big stuff.  But we have got to have a civic center or something like that as the draw that you need to bring people down.

Taunton:  You mentioned a civic center and you mentioned a museum and the children’s museum, are there other public infrastructure buildings, uses and that sort of thing that you think there is a community consensus on that would be appropriate for downtown in sparking a downtown synergy if you will?  I mean is there something that you are missing?  As an example is there a public gathering spot when you have Meridian Days, is there a place to have that?  Which by the way there are some very cute pictures in the paper of those girls. 

Bird:  Yeah we have got the Speedway and their parking lot and Story Park.  We have got Settler’s Park out here, but no we don’t have nothing downtown.  We have got Centennial Park over there at our rec place, but it is not large.  Generation’s Plaza you can hold little tree lighting and stuff like that, but you actually have to go down the street to do that.  No we don’t.  That is something that we need to look at in an area that you can have.  Nampa went down and they built where they have their Thursday night deal and the parking lot right there and everything.  I just wish the money would fall out of the trees and we could design it. First thing if we get that 20 acres that the railroad seems to think that they have to have, would make a big difference.  But that is my vision, just an overgrown, large Hyde Park.  I love that park.  I realize the retail isn’t there like it used to be and stuff – in the old days you had places you could sit out on the patio and eat and do that kind of stuff – that is what I envision.  
Slocum:  I think in general that is the consensus of the Board – to the specifics it may not be.  But I think in general, I don’t think that strays from where we are.

Miller: Are there a number of non profits – I am not talking about developers, but are there a number of non profits in Meridian because there is a model that I am familiar with that is in Santa Barbara where a foundation is allowed to do this and get credit for it. Create office space for a number of non profits and gave them favorable lease terms because you know there is non profits and they exist on grants typically and sometimes they are not exactly a question of dollars and it was actually a great catalyst in Santa Barbara, where this one foundation had a number of assets to go over to an existing building, renovate it and took office space themselves and provided opportunities for other non profits (inaudible).  I am not familiar with the structure here in Meridian.

Bird:  I don’t know of a lot of non profits.  Bob you were with Civic Partners, right?

Taunton: No I was not.

Bird:  You did some development –

Taunton:  Avamore (inaudible).

Bird:  Yeah, that is it.  You did some in California?

Taunton:  Yes.

Bird:  What would you see down here?  Are we out of line of what we or what my dream is?

Taunton:  I think both Ed and I would say no.  We have looked at downtown and we see civic uses that could take place here that frankly would not be appropriate in your other retail locations and not try to over retail and program the downtown in terms of activities and that programming function supports – work with the stakeholders.  I think what you described councilman is Hyde Park times five and makes a lot of sense and create a very walk-able community, parking and building going in and get some people down here both that are working and also that are drawn down here because of activities that are going on – the businesses that would attract people – I mean imagine if you had a brew pub down here?  That might be an attractor for a certain population group, a certain demographic.  But what would it take to attract something like that?  Is it a series of activities?  Street activities, (inaudible) activities, museums and those sorts of things.  You would want to locate those downtown.
Miller: First thing to answer you I don’t think you are off tract either.  But I also know that what you are trying to achieve is challenging to achieve. Again think of the development that has gone on in your community, it is tremendous – then you say why did none of that happen in downtown?  Well the answer is the markets – that is the way the market is.  The market goes where the market is.  So it is, I think, trying to figure out those things and I think if you go back to public investment, what public investments do you need to make in downtown in order to create the Hyde Park?  I think the public gathering spot and to be thinking of that – you don’t have that.  That creates a synergy.  I think activities – we all get focused on bricks and mortar but activities start to draw and once there is the draw then there is the bricks and mortar that come – with your budgets, I would think about some of those things, spending some money on activities.

Slocum:  Recently, four or five weeks ago we added Meridian Urban Market and that happens on a weekly basis – from an activity standpoint is new.  

Taunton:  Where does that take place?

Slocum:  Idaho, one block – I mean it is a start.  It is not enough.

Miller:  One thing that I would really encourage you to focus on would be one of those public infrastructure sort of things that you could do downtown to make downtown unique and to distinguish it from other pats of town.  Again I just want to say – what you said, building your building here was one big step towards doing that.  

Bird: I think somebody said that you guys recommend starting at a couple of blocks and moving out?  I think that is the greatest idea going.  But you all know that you have got to have a certain amount – if you were able to put a museum or a civic center in and get that – you have got to have – it is going to take more than a block or two.  But you want to keep it in the center don’t you?

Taunton:  You bet.

Bird:  I am not a planner, so I don’t know.  I just know what I dream to build.  

Basalone:  I fully agree with what Keith is saying and this is what we have to do is a civic center and start from there.  You start with what we have, not with what we don’t have.  We have some property – as Clark mentioned and Keith mentioned, there is other property that we would like to have but we don’t have.  There are other buildings that we would like to see rehabbed, which can’t get rehabbed.  See you start with what you have and you go out from there.  I envisioned, you know, if you want to start from the other side of the City Hall, whatever that street is, up to at least to where the Post Office is because I think COMPASS (inaudible) where we have a core downtown – if you are going to look at an area.  The other thing that we have going for is outdoor recreational activities.  We have a bicycle place here.  There are a lot of bicyclers and joggers and so forth.  I personally haven’t seen like a Meridian 5K run around – you know circling around the downtown area, making use of great rural roads we have in this area – it is great for runners.  I as a runner would not want to be running on the concrete of McMillan Road and Eagle Road, I would rather run in the shade of Meridian and so there are things that you could do.  You could build pathways.  I love the street lights that we have around City Hall here that are kind of retro – that should be the focus of our downtown area – we want to identify the pathway from Fairview and Main Street from downtown or Franklin where you can identify that there is a natural pathway to come into this town.  So there are things that you can do that would bring people here that don’t cost a lot of money, except for maybe the widening might cost something, but as far as setting up activities that are going to get people here year around, not just in the three or four summer months, but all year.  We have Dairy Days coming up and I don’t even know when that is.
Bird:  It happened.

Slocum:  Yeah, it happened.

Basalone:  Yeah, the advertisement on it was not widespread and most of the people in this community, probably 80 or 90 percent are here what in the last 20 to 25 years.

Bird: The last 12 years.

Basalone:  They are knew people.  They don’t know the history, they don’t know the opportunities and don’t really know what is down here because there is really nothing to bring them down here right now so let’s bring them in and show them what their history will be if they stay longer.

Bird:  Yeah, Dan you hit it on the head – we do have pathways out in our other areas – it is like everything else is it takes money.  The one thing that Boise has got is the Greenbelt.  My wife and I used to take the kids down there, ride or walk it.  That is what we want to have here one of these days – any ideas that you guys have got I am willing to listen because I just hope that I am not out of bounds with what I am dreaming on having down in Meridian.  I think that is what would fit down here.  

Slocum:  Well I think that is what destination downtown lays out to be here and I think what we as a Board struggle with is pay, the implementation of it.

Miller:  How is your financial position? As I remember from talking to you Craig I don’t think you – you haven’t generated a lot of increment at the moment?
Slocum:  No, we are less than a million per year at this point.

Miller:  A million per year?

Ford:  A little less.

Miller:  Have you spent any of that, I mean – what have you --?

Slocum:  Yeah, we have bought some land – obviously the VRT COMPASS building – we have done some streetscape – the lighting standards that you see at City Hall or at the bank are designed. We have blocks all in design. We have implemented many of those blocks with streetscape, lighting and benches and all that.  We have re-striped and we have done a parking plan.  Some issues there, but.

Miller:  You still have money invested in the COMPASS building or will that --?

Bird: We will still own part of the parking.  

Slocum:  The building itself, we are selling.

Bird:  Yeah – we get so many lots or spaces.

Slocum:  About two thirds of the land will still be ours.  I guess I step back and even now as we are starting budgeting for next year, as a Board, we have streetscaped or Arts commissioned, supporting the Urban downtown market, land purchased – we have all of those and we budget for them every year, we don’t necessarily do them.  I think we all struggle with where should we best use what little finance, little revenue we do have?  As we are kind of open dialoguing maybe that is where we need some assistance.  What is the highest best investment to get us to what our ultimate dream is?   

Escobar:  It seems we have the understanding of what our cultures could be – we see the vision, we developed that; we have opportunities happening with things like Meridian Urban Market and with things like Dairy Days that need to be publicized more.  It is a critical point right now and all of this opportunity sitting here and if we don’t take advantage of it over the next several years as the economy picks back up and people start to come back to life, we are going to miss out on it and we don’t want to miss out on it.  However, what we are struggling with as Craig has said, what do we do?  What is the first step?  Where do we take the first step? Where do we invest money? Where do we start?  We started to do something with that with the destination downtown plan and even then we were fumbling and trying to figure out at that moment.  But what I see in asking urban lands to do is to come in, look at where we are at and look at the opportunities that are sitting here, look at the blocks and how we are set up and look at the cultural activities and give us some advice on how to pull together an economic core and cultural that we can share with the entire city and the entire Valley to create that desire for everybody to come into our downtown.

Slocum:  Or outside the Valley for that matter.  That still seems –

Miller:  One of the things that happens with these studies and we have done so many of them – so we all – you do too – you have destination downtown, you have comprehensive plans and all of these studies and everybody puts in a lot of time and effort and work and it gets a nice cover on it like this and then it goes up on a shelf and no one does anything about it.  If we were to come to you and come up with some recommendations about doing it, how would you implement that?  Do you have staff people, the funding and that kind of thing to make that kind of thing happen?

Slocum:  Well we currently have one staff and that is Ashley.

Miller:  Well you can only work her so much.  That is your staff is – really?

Slocum:  Obviously the city can assist in certain components whether it is the planning side or public works or parks or one of those components although we are two different entities.  

Escobar:  I have personally have had half a dozen people come in and personally get involved and puttered out because we didn’t have any task or anything as a deliverable.  Anything they could sit down with.  Instead we were still just trying to dream and figure out what we can sit down on.  So I think once we start to establish what the small tasks are – let’s work on the park, let’s do this or whatever at the park that will create this and that and before you know it we have got three community members or businesses involved that are – people want to get involved, we just don’t have any guidance.

Ford:  Just to kind of go on that.  When I came in the subcommittees for destination downtown were already set and they were both down (inaudible) so to speak and I didn’t speak up at for a period of time because I wanted to understand why this is the way it is and I think it was January or February and I finally went to the executive committee and said why are we doing this because everybody seems to be spinning their wheels?  So what we did at that point was to do a strategic planning session and see what are our top priorities?  What are we trying to accomplish, what is it that we all can get our hands around and so we broke that into three priority areas and one was way finding and signage to downtown, two was to establish a subcommittee for the two bank buildings that we own and then three was a branding for downtown and the district as well too (inaudible) so the Chamber and the city and MDC were all saying the same message.  So that is what we have been focusing our efforts on the last few months. We have a proposal for the branding in front of the Board at this point.  Obviously that will affect the way finding and signage.  We have established he bank subcommittee and in fact one of the decision points that we have to make at some point in the very near future is do we move our Ground Floor incubator into one of those buildings (inaudible) expansion to a current business and interest in the Ground Floor. So that is kind of what we have been focusing on just to update you on those priorities for destination downtown.
Slocum:  Yeah, stepping back to destination downtown, we tried to not just have another study or another plan that sat on the shelf and what we got out of that is creating these four committees for prosperity – someone is going to help me – mobility, sustainability and livability and under each one of those four there are ten to twelve specific tasks with what we were going to do and some timelines and some priorities.  But even with that and we thought that was enough to go and march forward –

Ford:  There was a lot of overlap between the different committees and –

Slocum:  We haven’t been able to.

Ford:  Yeah, that was reason partly why is livability, mobility and there was a  lot of overlaps on the objectives and you would have them each working on different areas but not be able to fully come together with an outcome.  
Miller:  It is all too general?

Ford: Way too general.  One of the things that we are in the process as well and if we can’t give our committee members, the public, that this is kind of a three or six month project, they lose interest, they are active people.

Slocum:  They don’t want to just meet.

Ford:  Absolutely and that is why we went down to the specific here are our top three priorities for downtown and will replace them as we cross on of them off of the list.  

Miller:  Do you think that this Board, the MDC Board is generally in sync with the City Council as the political leaders of about what direction you want to go and priorities and that sort of thing?

Slocum:  Within our boundaries, I believe so.  We have obviously – Council, planning and zoning, Mayor and they are looking at the entire city.  Our threats are Ten Mile, the core, Meridian Town Center at the corner of Fairview and Eagle.  They are going to call it Meridian Town Center.  Those are all threats to our district, absolutely.  But I think we share the same –

Bird: I can speak for the Council and the Mayor that we share the same vision of downtown and share the same vision of getting it started, but we also understand that while we have been one of the more fortunate communities in this down turn, we have at least had some building permits and some stuff.  We know that this economy has really delayed us and these guys will attest that have been on the Board for very long that I hate studies.  We have had four of them for downtown and I said on this last one that we need to do something with it.  What is the good of having somebody go do a study if you are not going to implement it.  But I will say that this last one was the first one that is implement able.  So as far as on the same page?  Yeah, I think we are on the same page.  The Mayor and I sit on this Board and I have been on it since the inception.

Basalone:  I just want to answer the question of what do we do?  What I am hearing from the discussion and from all of my prior discussions is that we need to go from general to the specifics.  We need some priorities, physical priorities because you have to have positive reinforcement.  You need to be able to show the people downtown here that something is being done. So what physically can we do to show them?  The other thing is cultural.  What cultural things can we do in terms of activities that are year around and bring people here?  We can start prioritizing those two things. We have got the general plan.  We certainly have support from what I have seen from the city and the city departments. I mean I am impressed when the Planning Director is here contributing and so forth.  So we really need to come to specific activity that will show what we are doing within the limits of budgets and everything else.  But there are things that you can do.  If you could help us with those two things to give us a spur that we could use as a starting point, that would be great.  

Taunton:  Well my friend Ed is taking the chair so he will be the major decision maker.

Miller:  My friend Bob is (inaudible).

Taunton:  I think personally I would like to see ULI getting engaged in this.  It has great potential.  (Inaudible) successful retail commercial – so what we need to do is probably design a program and process a work plan, something that is actionable and give you something that you can start working on and presuming that we could work with Ashley on that if there are some members of the Board if we could have some input from and kind of get together and design something that could be achieved within a reasonable period of time – Ed and I have all seen (inaudible) and we are interested in working on something that brings some results and from what I am hearing this is a group that wants to see some results.  Get those small wins and get some –

Slocum:  Momentum.

Taunton:  Yeah.  So we can either work with Ashley if that is easier or if maybe there is a member or two that would like to sit on that as we design something or we can design something and bring it back.  I am not sure –

Miller:  I think those are good thoughts.

Slocum:  I like collaborative.  Just by what I am hearing this afternoon I would love to have Dan assist with that – just with the comments that I have heard.

Basalone:  Fortunately I am a retiree, I have time.

Ford:  Sorry Ashley in your absence we were just discussing how do we get to the next step and Bob is indicating that ULI will support to do something if we can formulate an action plan.

Taunton:  Some design with you Ashley and members of the Board and certainly Ed and I have a pretty strong understanding.

Bird:  Also Bob you have – I know the developers quite well because I was in the construction business for 42 years.  You know more how they think and stuff and it is tough to get a developer down here when he has to pay $18 to $19 a square foot for dirty dirt, when he can go out there and get it for $4 or $5 a square foot – clean dirt.  What do we need to – that is the thing that you could bring back for me is how do we attract them down. Because I have talked until I am blue in the face and they just don’t have any desire to come down.

Slocum:  We can get them to look.

Bird: We can get them to look but they are not going to put down the – I think we have got to, like CCDC in Boise, once they got the Gary Christenson’s and those guys there Boise started back up.  We have got – the public can do so much, but we have got to get private invested in here with us.

Miller: My own theory on that – I am a downtown Boise guy. That is where my law firm is.  I own property in downtown Boise and well I don’t know but at one point we paid a much higher rent than people did and the question is why did we do that and the answer is because we wanted to be downtown and there was enough draws for being downtown and have that extra cost market and I think that is what will cause people to come to downtown Meridian too because it is next to City Hall and it may be next to the performance arts center or next to something else that will be there.  There will be a reason to pay a premium for that.
Escobar:  There is a culture, there is an identity, there is services available right out of your door, it is walk able and certain type of professional services and that is why my office is right there downtown.  This fits with a lot of types of businesses that I think that are going to start to draw away from of the surrounding areas and come in as well as the new businesses that are being developed if we can create the culture and identity.  Well, how do you do that?  You start implementing some of these action items.  You start doing things like MUM.  It started and I don’t want to lose that.   
Miller:  Well we will get together with Ashley and maybe form a little subcommittee and try to formulate a plan where we could help. I guess what we should talk about – we talked about it before but again we are volunteers – we just got through a pretty major effort over in Nampa and I would be surprised if we could kind of rally forces before kind of early fall – we can start working on it but probably to get a group together, practically it is going to be September before we can do that just with the summer and the holidays and with all of that I would think, but –

Slocum:  Well that helps us from a budgeting standpoint as we look at what we are going to provide to assist that process.

Bird:  We will help you guys and I don’t think that timeline is bad at all.

Miller:  I guess one other thing that we do is we have to go convince that this is to do so Bob will put it on our --

Bird:  Go twists some arms?

Miller:  Yeah.  

Taunton:  How often do you have your meetings?

Slocum:  Twice a month.

Bird:  Second Wednesday at 7:30 a.m. and the fourth Wednesday at 4:00 p.m.  

Taunton:  Well we work with Ashley and figure out a date to report back in and try to get some things moving on this and maybe come back to you for what we are going to do.  

Miller:  I will leave that up to you, Ashley, give me or Bob a call and get something set up.

Taunton:  Give the new chairman a call.  Thank you very much.

Bird:  Thank you for coming.

Ford:  I know (inaudible) one sooner as later so you may want to do a check in with Board members as to what their availability dates are and –

Slocum:  Since it is 5:10 –

Escobar:  I was supposed to be leaving at 5:15.

Slocum:  Okay, thank you.

Ford:  Just trying to give a heads up. 
7.      Broadway Building Partnership Update (Lipschultz/Ford):

Ford:  I would just say in terms of the update we have gone vertical.  Which is awesome on the building and so I am very excited to see that.  We have a weekly update that will be coming in from Erstad each week that will be passed out to the Board and is included in your Board packet this week. We met with Erstad to discuss not only the Board’s decision on the change orders, we also discussed communications with Wright Brothers as well too in terms of timing and schedule and some of the issues that were brought forth at the last Board meeting.  So Erstad had that meeting yesterday and I have not been able to get an update from them in terms of the schedule but we need to have better communication –

Bird:  Ashley, I have been by there a couple of times – (inaudible) and I go by there today and we still have some steel standing – it looks like to me that we have already decided that we are four months behind and that we are going to pay $40,000.  I think we had better give somebody some highlight and get their rears going.  

Ford:  What I can tell you and what I know to date is when it appears that things are not happening that is not necessarily the case.  My understanding is there has been a lot of utility work and coordination and actually had to work this weekend in order to do some relocation with the building next door.  So my understanding is the work has not stopped and work is still going on a schedule and work is being not frantic, but keeping our schedule in mind.  

Bird:  The vertical – the steel and stuff had nothing to do with utilities.  You can work on the buildings and still be doing utilities.

Ford:  Commissioner Bird and I am reliant obviously on our architect and my understanding some of that steel could not be placed because of some of that overhead power lines that had to come down.  Those overhead power lines could not come down till this weekend due to the owner next door.  There was some disagreements between Idaho Power and that parking lot there.  I wish I could elaborate more, but that is what I know right now.  
Slocum:  Okay, thank you. We have got a quorum for 20 minutes with Mr. Escobar, so we will try and get through the items that we need decisions made on.  Item 8, I believe we do need to move on.
8.
Bank Subcommittee Recommendation (Slocum/Jensen):

Slocum:  The committee, Mr. Jensen, myself and Mr. Basalone?  Ms. Pipal maybe, but she wasn’t there.  We did have a meeting Wednesday last week onsite to discuss next steps.  I guess I will share what I believe to be the recommendation that we walked out of that meeting with and then will look to the rest of the committee for concurrence.  I think first off I think what the committee decided is that if we can come to a budget for relocating the Ground Floor use to the old Farmer’s and Merchants Bank for somewhere in the range of what our current year long lease range is that that would be our recommendation.  I don’t know that we walked out with clear direction on the next steps from moving forward with the on call engineering services and we look for your guys’ discussion on that.  

Ford:  We did put an extension for the lease with Dayside Properties as part of your packet and we do have a signed lease agreement with Dayside and essentially what that would do is it would extend our lease from July 31, 2011 to October 31st and it would give us the flexibility for the Ground Floor for two 30 day extensions to the end of the year to give us the flexibility on whatever improvements may not be needed as well too.  So that is something that we would need authorization for you to sign today as well.  

Basalone:  I agree with your summary.  We did say if we could come in under the $33,000 figure that it would be an investment worthwhile.  I think our concerns were and you might want to check with Mr. Borton to make sure that if we got three estimates on carpet that that would be sufficient for the three bid requirement – as most of the projects that are needed in that building are somewhere in the $500 to $2,000 range per need and so if we didn’t do it as an overall project but as individual need activities that if that three estimate would suffice for bidding and the second thing that was a concern was who would be overseeing that bidding getting done and how would that be done if we don’t hire a general contractor?  Those are our two main decisions that we need to make.

Borton:  Answer to the first – the bidding requirement is triggered on the project as a whole.  So (inaudible) $25,000 limit is what is triggering it.

Basalone: But can we use the – for instance, if we are doing carpeting can we get three carpet companies coming in and give us estimates and we pick out one of those three or do we have to have an overall $25,000 bid?  

Borton:  I guess yes and yes.  You are going to get individual bids from individual parts and how you manage or administer that is done by the committee or (inaudible) – that is more of a process question on how they do that.  

Slocum:  Anything to add Mr. Jensen?   

Jensen:  Really we just need to kind of make that decision on how we are going to handle it and if really moving is ultimately what we are doing.  Which like you said, Chairman and Basalone said if we can keep it under what we are paying every year that it makes sense to do.  Especially since there is somebody already willing to take over that space.  
Bird:  Let me ask you a question, Craig or Jim – with what I understand is over there I don’t see any reason we need any drawings or engineering or anything do we?

Ford: The only drawings that we would need are for the certificate of zoning compliance, application process that we have to go through with the city because one –

Bird: I forgot we had to do that.

Ford:  That is the crux of why – and essentially for the parking as well to because we have to meet some ADA standards and it is minimal, but there are some –

Bird:  Is that the $6,000 that you have got in there now?

Ford:  Yes, that included drawings but that also included managing the project as whole well too.  
Bird:  So another words you are down to $26,000 (inaudible) of work – you already spent almost $7,000 for an architect.

Ford:  For the two assessments, yes we did.

Bird:  I don’t see why we have got much to fix up.  I think our biggest thing is the stupid CZC.  We were in there two years without that being done – I guess that is what happens when you have attorneys in there, they get away with everything.  

Basalone:  Mr. Bird is absolutely correct.  We looked at that building, the three of us along with Ashley and Gwen and we did not see major needs.  We saw the things that you saw, Keith.  That is why I am saying each whether it is electrical or plumbing or carpeting or whatever they were all minimal and nothing that you couldn’t get three estimates from a local licensed electrician, plumber or carpet layer to do and so the key is really to keep within the limit that we said and we define what the priority needs were and they certainly aren’t everything that are on this page.  We had eliminated quite a few of those as needs, but it does take someone that is going to get the three estimates and see that the work is done.  That is the key.

Runyon:  Gwen Runyon with RFR Properties.  If I could add – I updated it but I didn’t include it in the packet because literally today I met the ACHD guys, the painters – so could I show this update that I have now to you guys as part of this decision?  

Slocum:  Yes.  Do you want to briefly go through this?

Runyon:  Right.  So far I met with the ACHD guy today, he was out there.  Everything works.  The furnishing that is inside the building are relatively new.  The one unit on the top will be dying soon and that is not a biggest ticket as we initially thought.  They can – the unit that is braced up on the 4 x 4’s that is the unit that will potentially need to be replaced.  It doesn’t have to happen – he was concerned because it is an old GE unit and it is so old that the serial numbers don’t give away the dates of it.  That has been a standard for a long time where you can look at a serial number and get the date issued.  It is old.  He is concerned about a potential fire hazard.  So the HVAC is actually in fairly good shape.  I did get the first carpet bid which I wasn’t very happy with. I had told them to leave out the vinyl in the bathrooms.  I just can’t replacing it – it is ugly, it is pink, but it is an ugly pink bathroom.  That just may have to be what it is.  The carpet comes up in lieu of molding so there are a couple areas where there is wood molding and there is a couple of areas where there is some vinyl molding or rubber base.  So we would have to either replace it with carpet or come back in with some kind of rubber molding or some other kind of base.  He had an allowance in there for $16 a yard for that.  I don’t know that is a little high.  We might be able to go down with a little cheaper grade of carpet.  The painting guys were in there today so I don’t have anything back from them.  The door security I have found that the fellow that did the work at the Ground Floor is a subcontractor that just wraps a certain product, so while I thought that it might be proprietary where we might have to have it moved by the people that installed it I don’t think that is the case.  I have only gotten one bid on that and we might be able to move that.  We have the wire and moving the technology bid, we have gotten a bid on that one.  The painting, I told him the walls that were not horrible to not paint.  They want to go straight over the wallpaper – there was the big long room, the north end of the building that is relatively new.  There might be a couple of patches in there, but we won’t have to paint that.  I think that is pretty much what we have gotten.  The signage is going to move the Ground Floor sign and I haven’t heard back yet that the plumbing number at $4,700. That was a number estimated by Jim Marsh and I think it is a little high, but I haven’t gotten a plumber out there yet. So I took our permits, utilities, hook up fees and everything is still going but we will have utilities still going during construction, the moving costs and I took the architectural down, I knew it was going to change I just haven’t had a chance to get me a new number on that, so I just took it down to half.  I don’t know if that is going to be enough to get those –
Ford:  Actually I did get a number from him, I ran into him while picking up some documents and he sent me an email today and it was approximately $1,500 would be the overall costs if he took out the rest of the tasks.  

Slocum:  Just for the CZC portion?

Ford:  Yes.

Slocum:  I guess in the spirit of time since we lose our quorum in five minutes now, do we continue on this item I am looking for Board and counsel’s opinion – on call engineering services?  

Ford:  I would say we push that to the next agenda.  There is nothing pressing right now that needs action on it.  

Slocum:  That would be the only other action item, really – and the Ground Floor lease. Is that correct?

Ford:  That is correct.

Runyon:  We have Matt Wheeler here and he had brought to us an offer to buy our phone systems and we thought it was a drop dead date of the 15th and it has been extended and I know that we don’t want to make a decision quickly but we have an opportunity and if the Board has any notion of moving forward with that we would want to move on that today.  

Basalone:  Can I make a recommendation of sorts?  If we are going to put off the vote on this for at least two weeks to our next meeting, could we in the meantime get some maybe more definitive plumbing, electrical, carpeting estimates so we can possibly get this $45,000 figure down to $33,000?  I am a little uncomfortable with the figures.  I am not criticizing you, but in terms of the generality of them, for instance, contingency, is the architectural $4,500 or $1,500? Is the project management $1,500 or is it $5,000?  I mean, I would like to see a little more accuracy in the figures then we know we are getting into because I wouldn’t want to see us getting involved in something and then later on find that is going to be more than we thought it was going to be.  I mean it doesn’t cost us to get someone out to get some estimates, I am assuming if they want the business, right?
Bird:  I never was able to charge for estimates.

Ford:  I think if we can take action on anything I think is actually the Ground Floor lease agreement No. 10 in order to get that back to RFR Properties if the Board is comfortable with the idea of that most likely we will be exiting that location.  I think that is the most critical item that has to be decided today.  Again, a signed copy of that is included in your packets.

Slocum:  Which we have considered before?  It was on our last agenda we just didn’t take action, is that correct?

Ford:  That is correct.

Borton:  The very back page of your packet is the signed copy of a very brief extension agreement.  It expires July 31st.  

Slocum:  I guess I would look to the Board for direction on item 10, just the Ground Floor lease agreement.

Bird:  Mr. Borton is this okay legally?

Borton:  It is and by approving the extension agreement you are not necessarily binding yourself to one decision or the other on the bank building.  

Slocum:  Mr. Escobar is willing to stay briefly.  I guess I would look to the Board for where you want to spend the limited amount of time we do have with the quorum, whether it is continuing to discuss the bank subcommittee recommendation, hearing about the phone system or moving onto on call engineering services?

Escobar:  I would suggest we finish with the bank subcommittee – I know that we need to make some decisions there.  I will stay as long as I need to.

Slocum:  I don’t know Mr. Basalone if your recommendation was in the form of a motion?

Basalone:  No, it was a comment, discussion based on the fact that we were getting short of time and it appeared that we were going to be carrying this over.

(Discussion continued after vote of Ground Floor Lease Agreement)

Escobar:  Mr. Chair as far as the dollar cost and doing the remodel and whether or not we should move into our own building, and also seeing the division of the Ground Floor is longer than a year, I have no concerns with the $45,000 verses the $33,000, not being part of your committee that looked at it, but just being a Board member and my only concern is numbers escalating because of unknowns not being locked into a fixed priced contract or a not to exceed and the legalities and difficulties associated with public bidding with having to place notices, with having to gather three bids following the law, utilizing Gwen who should be focused on gathering people into the Ground Floor rather than focused on renovating another space.  I guess I am just sharing the dollars don’t concern me, I think it is a wise investment for us to move out of that space and into our building – the only item that concerns me is whether or not we have RFR Properties do it or if we just had the architect produce a plan, went out for a bid.  
Bird:  I agree 75 percent with what Jim said.  I don’t think we need drawings. I don’t think all of this stuff you are telling me we have to do.  I have come to the conclusion that we probably have got to go get a GC, a small one.  Take them in there show them what needs to get done to get that building livable.  I don’t think that much has to be done.  $400 for (inaudible) bars.  I will go buy them myself –

Escobar:  They cost $200.

Bird:  That would be my preference now.  The $33,000 I am not stuck with.  I don’t know why it is going to take that much. The permitting and stuff like that, you have got utilities and hook ups $500.  All you have to do is turn them on.

Ford: I know you are looking at me, but I don’t know where that number came from.  I didn’t put that number together.

Runyon:  That was the utilities through the construction period.  We have to turn on the HVAC, use the lights during the construction period.

Bird:  I realize that.  We are not talking about a six month job.  If we are in the over six or seven days, something is wrong.  I think maybe the GC might be the way to go.  I can invite three small ones that I know to do us a great job.  Take them over there and show them what needs to be done, they can bring their subs in, have a bid and get the thing done.  I just can’t picture that building – I have got a lot of history with that building, all of the remodeling, window changing and stuff that I have done.  I just can’t believe that – I know the CZC and that is going to cost some stuff, but – anyway, that is my opinion.  I don’t know what the rest of you think, but we need to get it done.  I am like Jim, the dollars, if we are under the $33,000 I am happy.  If we are not, I won’t be sad.

Escobar:  In response to the comment about the architect, I think I am in agreement, you could have a prebid meeting on site and have Gwen facilitate that to be able to show them what needs to be done and have Gwen or Ashley I guess – if Gwen is going to do it – I don’t know if it is beyond her scope of work, maybe we need to reimburse her for some of her time for managing that, especially if she is so involved with the space.

Bird:  Didn’t we have somebody from our on call engineering out there?

Ford:  CSHQA, yes.

Bird:  Are we paying them?

Ford:  We paid them to the bank assessments and then we have an additional task order prepared for signature for the CZC drawings and managing the project.

Bird:  I would think that – let me look at your figures.  I would think that that is who I would want to take to show the people through.  All we have to do is make sure we are safe, make sure we have heating and cooling, water, electricity, the fire part of it – other than that we are not touching anything structural as far as I know of.  

Escobar:  ADA.

Slocum:  If there is no further discussion I would certainly entertain a motion.

Basalone:  I would move that we get three GC bids as Member Bird just mentioned and that those bids be brought back to the Board for our final approval.

Bird:  Second.
Slocum:  Discussion?

Bird:  Would the motion maker mind wording that with a minimum of three bids, because we might have four or five –

Basalone:  A minimum of three.

Bird:  Okay, second agrees.

Escobar:  My only question or concern would be performing the architectural services first to make sure that our scope is clarified before we go out to bid.  Do we need to do that for the occupancy permit?  Are we getting ahead of ourselves, I guess is what I mean to say?

Bird:  Maybe we have got the cart in front of the horse.

Borton:  It is a great question because for a GC to be able to bid it, they need to have a sufficient description that needs to be done and until you know exactly what those details are or close to –

Bird:  But we already have that.  We have got the assessment.  Don’t we?

Ford:  Yes –

Bird:  Is there anything for the CZC which we do that – that wouldn’t have anything to do with this motion would it?  I don’t know.

Escobar:  My understanding is if you submit a plan in and although we have assumptions on what needs to be performed the city may pick up on other things that also need to be performed and I guess I wouldn’t want to miss any other things that come up which happens.

Bird:  I guess we should go get our CZC before we do anything?  Who do you task that with?

Ford:  We do have a proposal with CSHQA to do that.

Bird:  Is that what is included in that $6,800?

Ford:  Yes and they did tell me via email today that the overall fee would be reduced if only they did the CZC to $1,500.  

Bird:  I guess you better – 

Basalone:  I will pull the motion – what would we need in addition to the motion for the GC?  We need to say what?
Slocum:  Ms. Ford or Mr. Borton can jump in but I think we need to in order to authorize someone to prepare and submit the CZC and go through that process and once that is completed someone then needs to create some scope description?

Basalone:  So two separate motions?

Ford:  Yes.

Borton:  To accomplish that you have got a task order number 2 that outlines services which included CZC.  If it was the Board’s desire you could move to approve the execution of task order 2 understanding that the scope will be amended limited to just the CZC requirements and limiting the fee to $1,500.  You could approve it and ratify it at your next meeting and get the work started, since you don’t have that exact document in front of you.  That would accomplish what you are describing.

Slocum:  If I am not mistaken that would be item A of the services?  You would be approving item A only?

Borton:  Mr. Chair for the comfort level of the Board it would be – you would want to approve any and all tasks required to accomplish the CZC approval.

Basalone:  Mr. Borton is this what you are referring to the --?

Borton:  Yes.

Basalone:  I have the least experience here.  I agree fully with what Mr. Borton says. My motion would be to call forward to approve task order –

Borton:  You can approve it as amended – that you are going to amend it probably here in just a second.

Basalone:  Okay, then I am really not sure what I am –

Borton:  It sounds like what you are trying to do is make a motion to approve task order 2 with two amendments, one as to a scope limiting it to direct the on call engineer to complete the CZC process in its entirety and two, limiting the fee to be charged to a not to exceed amount or a flat $1,500.

Basalone:  Motion is to approve task order 2 with the amendment to limit to $1,500 contingent upon the CZC approval.

Bird:  Second.

Borton:  What we would do with that motion is we will create an actual document with those changes and your motion if approved would authorize the chair to execute it and you can ratify that decision at your next meeting, but the work can get started.

Slocum:  Motion and a second.  Any discussion?

Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Basalone, aye; Slocum, abstain.

Bird:  Make sure that is noted that you are here, just abstained.

FOUR AYES.  ONE ABSTAIN.  MOTION CARRIED.

Slocum:  So that is the first step.

Basalone:  Do we need the second motion now?

Slocum:  At this point or do we just want to wait?

Ford:  Wait.  Because you will need to approve the scope and the budget.

Slocum:  So that takes care of item 8 for the time being?  

Ford:  Yeah.

Slocum:  I know we have Mr. Wheeler here. 
9.
Discussion on Ground Floor Phone System (RFR Properties/Matt Wheeler, The Network Company):

Wheeler:  Matt Wheeler with The Network Company. I can present information without – but without you having to keep a quorum because there is not a vote on anything.

Slocum:  I think we have already blown whatever appointments we had, so.

Wheeler:  We look at what is in place now and we have been involved the last four years now before the Ground Floor even opened. So we did a quick assessment of what was there, what it would take to move it and what changes might be made at the same time and that included looking at the fit of the equipment that is there, how it is used and if something else might serve that purpose better or more cost effectively and I don’t know if you want that from a technical perspective, I assume not; or a cost approach?  Okay.  The phone system is the biggest item and it was essentially specified for a fairly traditional office and it was specified in the way that allowed it to interoperate with what was in place at VengaWorks, which is no longer necessarily relevant to the Ground Floor.  It was also built in a way that would allow MDC as the leasor to include those services to the lessee with a tenant as opposed to just providing a way for the tenant to get those services that they need.  So for what you are spending now I believe that just the voice service portion of your Time Warner bill was $612 a month, you could get the service that you need not including what the tenants would need for about 10 percent of that cost per month, we actually got an estimate from Clear Voice that I believe was $57 or $75 per month.  So there is a cost to keeping the system that is there, because it is dependent on a fairly expensive service and I am guessing there are some questions about that.

Jensen:  For an explanation – so according to the contract that we have got there is not really a way to get out that expense?  We won’t necessarily be paying it towards those phones, but there will still be that expense that exists?

Wheeler:  And when we dealt with Time Warner in every aspect of your contract as far as I know including helping you get some of the reductions in those expenses, so you are committed to a certain amount of money per month, you can change what you receive for that amount.  So of the money that you are paying the $612 of it is to deliver traditional phone services to your phone system.  Which nobody uses.  The rest of it is to provide internet connectivity over that same physical connection, which consists of 3T1’s, which Time Warner has to pay Qwest for because Qwest owns the coppering.  So there is very little that they can do to reduce that and even if you said take away all of my services and just give me data, it is a dynamic sharing of that connection between voice and data, so you wouldn’t get any more data than you already have.  If you killed all of the voice, your bill wouldn’t change and it wouldn’t be any faster because it is running with Qwest copper.  As soon as you can leave Qwest copper and connect directly to Time Warner’s network then you can get somewhere between 15 and 35 megabits per second, roughly 7 to 15 times what you have now.  That should be very attractive to the perspective tenants that you are after as well (inaudible).
Jensen:  With this move and I know your portion is really just kind of the phone system, but you have been in contact with all of it – is there going to be a requirement for an extension of that contract if we move?

Wheeler:  So the biggest grinding factor for Time Warner is their capital outlay.  In order to connect you to their fiber network that network either has to be brought into the building you are in and is cost prohibitive to take it in the building you are in now, but there is more than one way to get there – to get into the old Farmers and Merchant’s building.  One of the ways that we have discussed with them – we have gone through this with the city as well, the IT Department is we can come off of the point of presence that Time Warner has in this building, which is actually in the data center off of the third floor and go from the roof of this building to the roof of that building, which means that Time Warner has zero capital outlay.  What that elimination of capital outlay does for you is allow you to either get it done sooner or faster without a contract extension at one data rate or get the whole thing done without having to go to a five year contract for them to recoup their expenses trenching into the building and getting a different data rate.  So like I say 15 to 35 meg, depends on what contract you sign essentially.  The cost for the equipment services to get that done is less than $2,000 as opposed to maybe looking at $15,000 plus that they would need to amortize over (inaudible) contract if they take fiber (inaudible).  We did also look at practical issues in terms of access to that fiber if something happened that needed to be addressed at the Ground Floor when the IT Department was closed and that wasn’t accessible, so that is limited to the low probability of there being a problem with Time Warner during a time that the Ground Floor was in use that City Hall was not opened.  In terms of the impact that that faster connection has on (inaudible) it would be if not the single fastest, one of the three fastest available connections for any public available meeting space in the state in terms of video conferences, (inaudible) anything that any one might want to do (inaudible) internet – the rest of the equipment is just a matter of what you keep or don’t keep.  There is some things that would normally go with the phone system like the switch that provides the power (inaudible) phones and the phones themselves and so we went through all of that –
Jensen:  With the phone system what was the – one of the things that I was trying to figure out when we were having this discussion was what was the amount of – if we initially had the phones and then we split from Venga, had another outlay of capital – something and I thought it was a fairly significant amount – can you explain what that is or –

Wheeler:  I don’t have all of the details on the initial purchaser; we were after that and wasn’t directly involved in it.  I went to the company that did do all of that work for MDC and I believe they did the work for VengaWorks as well and I went to them first as the agent that would most likely be able to get you the best price for what you had and get it the soonest if that was the option that you wanted to pursue.  So they went through and did a quick inventory and they did have all of the original paperwork and new exactly what should be there and confirmed all of that.  So they can and just a question of how much and how soon resell that system and make it as reliable and as low risk for any buyers as anyone could because they sell it at brand we can make it act brand new when they are selling it used.  We can look at EBay too but it doesn’t seem like you would get a better price there.  So their estimate was $8,000 including all of the hard ware and the phones of course you are not going to recoup any of the labor and services that would invest the system which I think was quite a bit with that original installation.  

Jensen:  I guess that was probably one thing I didn’t consider when we were –

Wheeler:  It is a pretty labor intensive implantation to do that especially when you are setting up for multiple tenants right off the bat and not knowing how many people are going to use it and how they are grouped together and I am sure they spent some time second guessing and they would have some expense in updating all of the soft ware licenses for that system before they could resell it.  I think what they were estimating was about half of what they could implement for someone else after adding more labor and licenses.  

Slocum:  Taking that system out of the Ground Floor doesn’t leave the Ground Floor building a less than desirable capacity?

Wheeler:  Yes, that is a real killer on paper and the limitation is that – there are two things really – in order to use the system the way that it is built out now we have to have that traditional phone service piping into it that is costing you $612 a month.  You could spend more money to modify that system to bring in a voice IP source, but then you would still have a phone system that is meant for a large number of people.  The other contextual issue is that if the intent is to have just enough phones for the operation of that space – which is really just a few phones total, but to give a tenant access to a service then you don’t have to own the equipment that the tenants have, you don’t have to carry the expense of multiple tenants when you have no tenants or few tenants and so it really lets you whittle down that ongoing expense to just what is needed for your own operation expenses, but still provides all services to those tenants.  One of the upsides of what we propose to replace it which is a service from a local company Clear Voice is that any tenant that moves into the space and uses their service can take their phones and their phone numbers with them when they leave that building.  As an incubator, I would think, should be part of the objective.  They can turn on new service for a new tenant in one business day.
Slocum:  It doesn’t – the existing Ground Floor location isn’t left incapacitated?

Wheeler:  It is my understanding that if the upstairs tenant is interested in that space then they are already a Clear Voice –

Slocum:  But I mean from the mechanics of selling the system, you are not – it only services our space?

Wheeler:  Correct.  There is no service provided that we can see to anyone upstairs – two pieces of hardware and a cabinet and then uninterruptible power supply and then a wire and phones.  The wire certainly has value to anyone certainly moving into the space, but I don’t know if that was done as part of the TI’s.  You can’t get your money back by pulling wire out of the walls.  Unfortunately.

Escobar:  I am a tenant in that building and would this affect not just me, but other future tenants that may also move into the upstairs building if they are not Clear Voice? 

Slocum:  That was kind of my question.

Wheeler:  Time Warner connect comes in through the basement and then runs into the cabinet on the first floor and then rooms to the phones and the wire course in the downstairs space – one camera and one wireless access point in the downstairs space.  I don’t believe there is anything that runs in the upstairs space except we put in a line that goes to the radio that is sitting upstairs for the downtown wireless network.  As part of the move we have already scoped out we essentially have to swap the equipment in that building for the equipment that is currently at the Farmers and Merchants because there is one piece that needs to be the route of the network, so if the connection into the Farmers and Merchants that piece has to move there, but it would be replaced by the other pieces, so anyone who is using the unwired city network would not lose service for more than the half day it takes to make that slot.  

Jensen:  Is there an opportunity to increase the unwired city speed based off of --?

Wheeler:  Yes, so based off of right now, there is a maximum of 4 ½ meg if there are no phone calls going on coming into the Ground Floor.  So the public network is set to use only a portion of that so that is never taking access away from a tenant.  I believe it is capped at 2 meg right now.  There is a cap on how much each device on (inaudible) that can use and then how much that network can use.  So the cap per user is probably 1 meg and the cap for all users added together is probably 2 or 3 – I can look it up from here if you need me to.  But it just needs to be a portion of it, not all that is coming in the building.  So if you take 15 or 30 megs into the new building, it just needs to be a portion not all of that.  So it could be 3, 10, 15 times faster or whatever the Board or administrator of that space feels is appropriate.  We do other things too like only sessions of a certain length so that people are getting kicked off.  One of the things that happens in the downtown networks is that you will get merchants getting rid of their DSL bill by moving that.  Sometimes we have to clarify it is not for commercial use and it is not for indoor use, although at some point if were interested, we do have the option of creating a two tier service where we can do a faster (inaudible) encrypted network for the merchants that you can bill them for, but until those merchants that are interested it is not worth the time of creating that.  

Slocum:  Technical enough?

Bird: Over my head.

Wheeler: In terms of timing – we would have to charge you more to turn up service for the new building by July 31st than we would than to do it by August 1st.  Other than that, we have no significant hurdles.  There is nothing that we are waiting for especially if we come out of this building with the Time Warner (inaudible) something we could do in a matter of days.

Slocum:  Logistically selling the system could – we can’t do that until we move? 

Wheeler:  You can do that now.

Slocum:  And it would affect --?

Wheeler:  You have a public phone number that if someone calls it, it has to ring somewhere.  It can be forwarded to Gwen’s cell phone and she brought up that option.  There is no significant traffic outbound calls.  So as long as you make sure your phone number rings somewhere.  There aren’t any – I believe what Gwen told me, I would have to look at it, but I believe there are no paid tenants –

Basalone:  Is the bottom line on the dollars that we are talking about that we can recoup some money from selling some of the physical property that we currently have – that we need to keep the $600 a month because that is a contract? (Inaudible) $75 at the present time?

Wheeler: You cannot reduce what you are paying to Time Warner until the end of that contract which is I believe next week.  
Basalone:  So we have another year of $600 a month – but you could use it in different ways?

Wheeler:  Right.  You can get faster internet and voice.

Basalone: But we could recoup some money from somewhere at physical property (inaudible)?

Wheeler:  Correct and then which will recover from what I can tell all of the equipment and move expenses for technology going to the new building.

Basalone: So basically we could come out ahead a little bit in someway because we have the ongoing contract –

Slocum:  Yeah, once you get past what we spent on it and it has already been spent – you are never going to see it again.  That was my difficulty, but it is gone.

Wheeler:  My thing is that you are having to pay $600 a month – the $75 would be over and above what we would pay Time Warner, it wouldn’t be a part of the Time Warner contract. 

Bird:  But that only lasts until June 2012?

Wheeler:  Correct unless you sign a longer contract with Time Warner – to get them the very fiber in the building, which we don’t need.

Bird:  We don’t need.

Wheeler:  You get this done without that.  The system that we would put in and obviously we are talking roof top to roof top, it is wireless, it is the same equipment that we have been installing to upgrade the city’s microwave network which we have been maintaining for several years.  So we actually put in a fully redundant connection in the last upgrade that we did; so even so (inaudible).  

Bird:  The only down fall with that is if something happens at the Ground Floor and City Hall is closed then we don’t get in.  Did I understand that right?

Wheeler:  If there is a failure of Time Warner services that caused them to have to get into the data center and the IT Department is not open, then yeah, we would have to arrange – really what they bring in is fiber and a box that converts the copper and then we need a main power so there is not a whole lot to go wrong.  

Bird:  We still have a contract with Time Warner even after 2012?  

Wheeler:  Through June 2012, I believe.  

Bird:  Well I guess – we have to put their stuff over in the new one until 2012 or what?

Slocum:  No, no.  Just the internet – the $600 for whatever service we choose to use it for.

Wheeler:  Time Warner provides both –

Bird:  I know they provide –

Wheeler:  They own their own fiber network, but they couldn’t get fiber to the old building so they had to pay Qwest to get copper to the new building.

Bird:  So if we have it out of here over to there – now I am technology dumber than anybody, but tell me when do you come in and take it – after it gets to the new building?

Wheeler:  We would take (inaudible) from Time Warner in this building.

Bird: Oh in this building? So you would come right out of the server --?

Wheeler:  Exactly and then run a connection from that way to the roof and we already maintain wireless equipment at that corner and wireless from that corner with the city and then just shoot straight down at that building and put equipment as we already have at that building and bring it in and that is where our internet connection would come from.  

Bird: But there is no way that we can get out of this Time Warner or buy out --?

Wheeler:  It is probably equal to what you pay for the month times the number of months.  Unless Mr. Borton there is something in that contract that says if you abandon or move out of that property you are no longer or reliable for services for the property.

Borton:  I don’t believe that was in there.

Slocum:  Well who was our attorney at the time?  

Jensen:  I move that we approve the sale of the phone equipment and I don’t know how that has to happen, but – at the existing Ground Floor.

Bird:  I will second that.  

Wheeler:  Do we need to make a special note that (inaudible) ready to buy that system – just because you are ready sell doesn’t mean that --

Jensen:  I was under the impression that there was a buyer right now.

Slocum:  I was under the impression there was a buyer.
Wheeler:  They had a prospective buyer and they give us an estimate of what they would buy it for.  That was two weeks ago.
Jensen:  Okay.

Slocum: Is that enough?

Borton:  Sounds like you are authorizing whomever you are empowering to initiate the process of selling the phone, finding a buyer and bringing back that purchase proposal for approval by the Board.

Bird:  You can sell it without approval from the Board.

Borton:  And you don’t have a buyer right now anyway.  So you are basically saying let’s sell it and go and try and sell it and when you get a buyer to sell it bring it back and decide.  Or officially approve it.  That is what I am hearing you say.

Slocum:  That is what I heard you say.  For the record that is what Mr. Jensen said and Mr. Bird seconded.  Any discussion?  


Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Basalone, aye; Slocum, aye.


ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.

Slocum:  What is the Board’s pleasure we have got on call engineering to discuss or to move?

Escobar:  I would move that we –

Borton:  You can take up the items or you can table them.

Escobar:  I move that we table the rest of the items on the agenda.

Bird:  Second.

Slocum:  All those in favor say aye.  

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.

10. Ground Floor Lease Agreement Decision (Borton):

Bird:  I move that we pass the agreement for the Ground Floor lease extension and for the Vice Chair to sign and the secretary to attest.

Jensen:  Second.

Slocum:  Motion and a second.  Any discussion?  Hearing none, roll call vote.

Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Basalone, aye; Slocum, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.

11. On-Call Engineering Services RFP Decision to Adopt Resolution 11-009 (Borton):

12. Resolution 11-009 Authorization of On-Call Engineering Services RFP (Borton):

13. Counsel’s Report (Borton):

14. Project Manager’s Report (Ford):

15. Executive Session per Idaho State Code 67-2345:

16. Adjourn the Meeting:

Escobar:  I move we adjourn.

Bird:  Second.

Slocum:  All those in favor say aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
(AUDIO ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)
APPROVED:
________________________________



____/______/_______

CRAIG SLOCUM, CHAIR
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